
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Tuesday, 14 September 

2021Tuesday, 14 September 2021.  
 01476 406080 

Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Employment 
Committee  

     
 

 

Wednesday, 22 September 2021 at 10.00 am 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House, St. Peter's Hill, 

Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Sarah Trotter (Chairman) 
Councillor Anna Kelly (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Kelham Cooke, Councillor Barry Dobson, Councillor Annie Mason, 
Councillor Adam Stokes and Councillor Paul Wood 
 

 

Agenda 
 

1.   Apologies for absence 
 

 

2.   Disclosure of interests 
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the meeting. 

 

 

3.   Minutes of the meetings held on: 
  

 

3(a)  10 June 2021 (Special meeting) 
 

(Page 3) 

3(b)  16 June 2021 
 

(Pages 5 - 9) 

3(c)  4 August 2021 (Special meeting) 
 

(Pages 11 - 12) 

4.   Updates from the previous meeting 
To consider updates on the Actions agreed at the previous meetings. 

 

 

5.   Apprenticeships Update 
 

(Pages 13 - 16) 

6.   Mental Health and Wellbeing 
 

(Pages 17 - 26) 

7.   Onboarding Employees Update 
 

(Pages 27 - 30) 

8.   Name Blind Recruitment (Pages 31 - 33) 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
9.   Local Government Association - Remote Peer Support - Final Report 

 
(Pages 35 - 52) 

10.   Designation of Monitoring Officer 
 

(Pages 53 - 55) 

11.   Work Programme 2021 - 2022 
 

(Pages 57 - 58) 

12.   Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent 
 

 



 
 

MINUTES 
 

 

Meeting of the Employment 
Committee 
 
Thursday, 10 June 2021, 10.00 am 

 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House,  
St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 

 

 

Committee Members present 
 

Councillor Sarah Trotter (Chairman) 
Councillor Anna Kelly (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 
Councillor Kelham Cooke 
Councillor Annie Mason 
Councillor Nick Robins 
Councillor Adam Stokes 
Councillor Paul Wood 
 

 

Officers in attendance  
 

Nicola McCoy-Brown (Director of Growth and Culture) 
Neil Moverley (Human Resources Manager) 
Graham Watts (Head of Democratic Services) 
 

 

1. Apologies for absence 
 

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Barry Dobson, with Councillor 
Nick Robins being appointed as his substitute. 

 

2. Disclosure of interests 
 

No disclosure of interests were made. 
 

3. Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 

It was proposed, seconded and AGREED to exclude the public and press from the 
meeting, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the  Local Government Act 1972 
during consideration of the following item of business because of the likelihood that 
otherwise exempt information, as described in paragraph 3 of the Act, would be 
disclosed to them. 

 

4.  Recruitment:  Assistant Director of Planning 
 

 Further to the undertaking of formal interviews and it having been proposed, 
seconded and voted upon, it was agreed that an offer of employment would be 
made for the position of Assistant Director of Planning from those candidates 
interviewed. 

 

5. Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special circumstances, 
decides is urgent 

 

There were no items of other business. 
 

3

Agenda Item 3a



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

MINUTES 
Meeting of the 
Employment Committee 

 

Wednesday, 16 June 2021, 10.00 am 
 

 
Council Chamber, South Kesteven House, 
St Peter’s Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 

 

 

Committee Members present 
  
Councillor Sarah Trotter (Chairman) 
Councillor Anna Kelly (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Kelham Cook (The Leader of The Council) 
Councillor Barry Dobson (The Deputy Leader of The Council) 
Councillor Annie Mason (Cabinet Member for People and Safer Communities) 
Councillor Penny Milnes 
Councillor Adam Stokes (Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources) 
 

Officers in attendance 
 

Karen Bradford (Chief Executive) 
Alan Robison (Deputy Chief Executive) 
Shahin Ismail (Monitoring Officer) 
Neil Moverley (HR Manager) 
Jane Jenkinson (Senior HR Officer) 
Shelley Thirkell (Acting Principal Democratic Officer) 
Alice Atkins (Local Government Association Graduate Trainee) 
 

 

 

6. Apologies for absence 
 

Councillor Paul Wood had provided his apologies for the meeting and was 
substituted by Councillor Penny Milnes, for this meeting only. 
 

7. Disclosure of interests 
 

There were none. 
 

8. Minutes of the meeting held on 10 March 2021 
 

A clarification was made to the minutes of the meeting held on 10 March 2021, that 
under minute no 35. the period ‘2019/2021’ should read ‘2019/2020’.  

 

The minutes of the meeting held on 10 March 2021 were proposed, seconded and 
AGREED, subject to the following amendment: 

 

• minute no 35. the period ‘2019/2021’ should read ‘2019/2020’. 

5

Agenda Item 3b



 
 

 
9. Updates from the previous meeting 

 

Members considered the update provided on actions from previous meetings. 
 

It was noted that the actions were progressing well. 
 

10. HR Dashboard 
 

The HR Manager introduced the Committee to the report on the HR Dashboard. 
The HR Dashboard provided updates on establishment data and HR metrics on a 
quarterly basis, which could be compared with data from previous years. The HR 
Team had worked with the Organisation Development Team to identify ways of 
automating the Dashboard, currently the information was collated manually.  
 

The HR Manager provided the Committee with a presentation on the current 
workforce data, which was contained within the HR Dashboard, as well as the 
actions taken in response. 
 
Members raised various questions and the responses were as follows: 
 

• One department in particular had struggled to recruit to permanent roles, had 
a reason been identified? 
 

The HR Manager noted that this was due to HGV Licensed drivers were difficult to 
recruit, but that the Team were exploring apprenticeships that included HGV 
training.  

 

• Was any information captured in relation to why officers visited Mental Health 
First Aiders? Members were concerned that those seeking support may be 
affected due to their roles within the organisation. 
 

The HR Manager explained that this information was not recorded to ensure 
anonymity.   

 

• Questions were raised about the onboarding and exit processes. 
The HR Manager confirmed that a new onboarding process was to be 
proposed to the Chief Executive. There was an online exit survey for leavers 
to complete, as well as an optional in-person interview. It was noted that the 
in-person interview was rarely taken up by leavers. 
 

The Chief Executive noted that going forward all managers should be made aware 
of and utilise the information provided by the HR Dashboard.  
Members requested a summary of the information contained within the Dashboard, 
with concentration on areas that needed more focus. With in-depth presentations 
on a six-months basis. 

 
The Leader, Chairman and Chief Executive thanked the HR Manager and his Team 
for the comprehensive presentation. 

6



 
 

 
ACTIONS: 

 
a) Going forward the HR Dashboard would be presented to Employment 

every six months. 
b) A report to be provided on absentees, apprentices and equal 

opportunities at the next Employment Committee meeting. 
 

DECISIONS: 
 
1. The Employment Committee noted the layout and data provided in the 

HR Dashboard and requested that their feedback on the design of the 
dashboard for future development be taken into consideration. 

2. The Employment Committee noted the information provided in the 
dashboard and request that their feedback on the data for the HR 
workplan 2021/22, including a review of the equality and diversity 
information held on file at the Council, be taken into consideration. 

 
(The Chairman called a short recess at 11:08 and the meeting reconvened at 
11:20) 

 

11. iTrent Human Resource system and Capabilities 
 

The HR Manager introduced the Committee to the report detailing the iTrent Human 
Resource System. The report identified potential future modules that could increase 
the capability of the system.  
 

There was some discussion following the overview of the report, one Member 
enquired about the set-up costs associated with the iTrent system, there was 
concern as the system was already in place. The HR Manager confirmed that this 
question had been put to MidlandHR, who confirmed that a higher up-front cost 
would be charged, with lower costs in subsequent years. 
 
Following a vote, the recommendations of the report were AGREED.  

 
DECISIONS: 

 
1. The Employment Committee noted the current capabilities of the iTrent 

HR system. 
2. The Employment Committee noted the future modules that the Council 

could access when it renewed its contracts with MidlandHR. 
3. The Employment Committee noted the future modules that the Council 

could purchase and approved the exploration of value for money and 
suitability of purpose of those modules. 

4. The Employment Committee approved the exploration for joint working 
and information sharing with neighbouring district councils who utilise 
the iTrent system. 
 

7



 
 

12. Gender Pay Gap 2019/2020 
 

The Committee received a report from the Senior HR Adviser on the Gender Pay 
Gap 2019/2020. Under the Equality Act 2010, Regulations 2017, the Council was 
required by law to publish an annual Gender Pay Gap Report. The information 
contained within the report was as of 31 March 2020 and showed a significant 
improvement when compared nationally, the sector figure and the Council’s own 
performance in 2018/19. 
 
Members raised various questions and the responses were as follows: 
 

• How would new ways of gender recognition impact the process of measuring 
the Gender Pay Gap? 

 
The Senior HR Officer recognised that adapting how gender was recorded was 
something which required consideration going forward. The way in which the 
gender pay gap was calculated was currently based on Government guidance. 
There was hope that the Government would give this further consideration for future 
years looking at potentially changing legislation. The HR Manager noted that 
internally there was the wish to refresh the Council’s Equalities Policy.  

 

• Members asked if different types of roles were taken into consideration when 
considering the Gender Pay Gap? For example, some roles were 
predominately occupied by males.  
 

The Deputy Chief Executive clarified that legally the Council must pay the same 
amount to men and women for the same job, but that the gender pay gap calculates 
overall pay gap to establish differences in opportunity to progress. 

 
DECISION: 

 
The Employment Committee noted the outcomes of the 2019/2020 Gender 
Pay Gap Reporting. 

 

13. Work Programme 2021 - 2022 
 

The Committee received the Work Programme for 2021 - 2022. 
 

14. Exclusion of Press and Public 
 

Members considered excluding the press and public, following a vote it was 
AGREED unanimously. 

 
DECISION:  

 
That the press and public be excluded during discussion of the following 
agenda item because of the likelihood that information that was exempt under 
paragraph 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local government Act 1972 (as amended) 
would be disclosed. 

 

8



 
 

15. Employee Survey 2020/21 
 

The HR Manager introduced the Committee to a report on the Employee Survey 
2020/2021. The survey had been conducted in October 2020 and all South 
Kesteven District Council employees had been invited to participate. 
 
The HR Manager produced a presentation on the findings of the Employee Survey 
2020/2021, this was provided to Members. The presentation also detailed what the 
Council had done in response to the findings and any upcoming programmes to 
address the various issues raised. 
 
Following the presentation, Members raised various questions.  

DECISIONS: 
 

That the Committee: 
 

1. Noted the findings of the Employee Survey 2020/21 
2. Noted the actions that have taken place since the survey was conducted 

and proposed new steps. 
3. Discussed the survey results and provided direction for future areas of 

focus.  
 

16. Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special circumstances, 
decides is urgent 

 

There was none. 
 

17. Close of meeting 
 

The Chairman closed the meeting at 13:00. 
 
 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Minutes 
Employment Committee 
Wednesday, 4 August 2021 – 
11.00am 

 
 

 
 

 
The Leader: Councillor Sarah Trotter (Chairman) 
The Deputy Leader: Councillor Anna Kelly (Vice-Chairman) 
  
Members present  
  
Councillor Kelham Cooke 
Councillor Annie Mason 
Councillor Adam Stokes 
Councillor Paul Wood 
 
Other Members in attendance 
 
Councillor Robert Reid 
 
Officers  

 

Deputy Chief Executive (Alan Robinson) 
Director of Housing and Property (Gary Smith) 
Head of Democratic Services (Graham Watts) 
Senior HR Officer (Jane Jenkinson) 
 
External Representatives in attendance 
 
Nick Cole – Consultant, Gatenby Sanderson 
 
18. Apologies for absence 
 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Barry Dobson. 
 
19. Disclosure of interests 
 
No interests were disclosed. 
 
20. Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 
It was proposed, seconded and agreed to exclude the public and press from the 
meeting, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the  Local Government Act 1972 
during consideration of the following item of business because of the likelihood that 
otherwise exempt information, as described in paragraph 3 of the Act, would be 
disclosed to them. 

11

Agenda Item 3c



 

 

21. Recruitment: Assistant Director of Housing 
 
Further to the undertaking of formal interviews and it having been proposed, 
seconded and voted upon, it was agreed that an offer of employment would be made 
for the position of Assistant Director of Housing from those candidates interviewed. 
 
 
The meeting closed at 14:43 
 
 

12



 

 

 

Employment 
Committee 
22 September 2021 

Report of: Councillor Annie Mason 

 Cabinet Member for People & Safer Communities 

         
  

 

Apprenticeship Update 

An update on the number and types of apprenticeships being supported at SKDC. 
 

 

 

Report Author 

Jane Jenkinson, Senior HR Officer 

 
 

 j.jenkinson@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

High Performing Council Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alan Robinson, Deputy Chief Executive 6 September 2021 

Approved by: Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 8 September 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Annie Mason, Cabinet Member for People 
& Safer Communities 

14 September 2021 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Notes the update on apprenticeships at South Kesteven District Council. 

 

13

Agenda Item 5

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 SKDC actively promotes the use of apprenticeships as part of workforce planning and 

works closely with local colleges, universities, and private sector specialist training 

providers to deliver apprenticeship training and to advertise apprentice opportunities 

throughout the Council. 

1.2 As a public sector organisation, the Council has a target of 2.3% of its headcount to be 

apprentices.  This equates to 13 apprenticeships each year based on current 

establishment levels.  Any apprenticeships that finish within a 12-month period need to be 

replaced by new apprenticeships to maintain the target. 

Apprenticeships at SKDC in 2020-21. 

1.3 SKDC currently has 13 employees carrying out apprenticeships. 

1.4 4 of these apprenticeships have commenced this financial year. 

1.5 2 entry level apprenticeships are currently being recruited into Repairs.  This would bring 

the total apprenticeships that started in this financial year to 6. 

1.6 The HR team have regular conversations with senior management which include 

discussions on workforce planning and apprenticeship opportunities.  Opportunities for 

potential future apprenticeships in the next financial year will continue to be explored.  

 

Statistical breakdown of current apprenticeships. 

1.7 Table One: The gender of apprentices at SKDC. 

Male 9 

Female 4 

 

1.8 Table Two: The age range of apprentices at SKDC. 

 

Age Range <20 21-25 26-30 31-40 41-50 51+ 

No. of 
apprentices 

1 3 4 2 2 1 

 

1.9 Table Three:  Sections where apprentices are based. 

 

Section Planning Repairs Finance Customer 
Service 

Waste Building 
Control 

CMT 

No. of 
apprentices 

5 1 1 1 3 1 1 

 

 

 

14



 

 
 

1.10 Table Four:  Types of apprenticeships at SKDC 

 

Apprenticeship type No. of apprentices 

Business Administration Level 3 1 

Large Goods Vehicle Driver Level 2 3 

Customer Service Practitioner Level 2 2 

Electrician Apprenticeship Level 3 1 

Chartered Management Degree Level 6 1 

Chartered Town Planner Level 7 3 

Accountancy Taxation Professional Level 7 1 

Senior Leader Level 7 1 

 

 

Apprenticeship Incentives during the Covid-19 pandemic 

1.11 The Government have introduced an incentive for apprenticeships from 1st April 2021. 

Employers can apply for a payment of £3000 for new apprentices of any age who have an 

employment start date of 1 April 2021 to 30 September 2021. The apprenticeship must 

start before 30 November 2021.  

1.12 The incentive payment is in addition to the £1,000 employers already receive for hiring an 

apprentice: 

•aged 16 to 18 years old 

•aged 19 to 24 with an education, health and care plan or who has been in the care of 

their local authority  

1.13 The incentive can be used for set-up costs/training/uniforms/equipment and even towards 

salary. 

1.14 HR and the Learning and Development Officer will be working with managers to identify 

any training needs which may be delivered through the apprenticeship scheme that will 

allow the incentive payment referred to in 1.11 to be claimed.  

Kickstart Scheme 

1.15 The Council are currently investigating the government’s Kickstart scheme which is aimed 

at providing funding to create temporary work placements for 16 to 24 year olds on 

Universal Credit who are at risk of long term unemployment. 

1.16 The scheme provides funding for 25 hours per week for a total of six months at the 

National Minimum Wage (or the National Living Wage depending on the age of the 

participant).  Funding is also provided towards set-up costs, support, and training. 

1.17 The Kickstart scheme is not an apprenticeship, but participants may move on to an 

apprenticeship at any time during, or after their job placement, providing the potential for 

the Council to create a future talent pool. 

 

15



 

 
 

2 Financial Implications  

2.1 Should the commitments to fund apprenticeship training exceed the funding available 

through the apprentice levy, central government would fund 95% and the council would 

fund the remaining 5% through existing staffing budgets. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance 

3 Legal and Governance Implications  

3.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report.  

Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Head of Democratic Services and 

Deputy Monitoring Officer 

4 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

4.1 There are two elements to consider regarding equality:  

i) To ensure that all employees are given access to apprenticeships on a transparent 

and equitable basis. 

ii) That external applicant recruitment to apprenticeships is carried out in line with 

SKDC’s recruitment processes. 

5 Risk and Mitigation 

5.1 SKDC needs to ensure that the Apprenticeship Levy is utilised to ensure a mix of 

supporting the continuous professional development of existing employees alongside 

recruitment of new employees into a variety of roles at different levels.  This will be 

managed through regular meetings with managers to develop opportunities, succession 

planning and management reviews. 

5.2 If the Apprenticeship Levy is unspent after two years, the funding is returned to Her 

Majesty’s Revenue and Customs.  In order to mitigate this SKDC is looking at a mixture of 

apprenticeships of varying costs that support the corporate strategy and the future needs 

of the organisation. 

 

 

16



 

 

 

Employment 
Committee 
22 September 2021 

Report of: Councillor Annie Mason 

 Cabinet Member for People & Safer Communities 

         
  

 

Mental Health and Wellbeing  

An update on the Council’s Mental Health and Wellbeing action plan. 
 
 

 

 

Report Author 

Alice Atkins, Local Government Association Graduate 

 
 

 Alice.Atkins@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

High Performing Council Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alan Robinson, Deputy Chief Executive 1 September 2021 

Approved by: Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 13 September 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Annie Mason, Cabinet Member for People 
& Safer Communities 

14 September 2021 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Notes the update on the Mental Health and Wellbeing action plan at South 
Kesteven District Council 

 

17

Agenda Item 6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 At Employment Committee on 10 March 2021, the findings of the January 2021 Health 

and Wellbeing ‘Pulse’ Survey were presented. The findings showed how Council staff 

were feeling following a third national lockdown and continued working from home. The 

findings also provided an understanding of what staff wanted regarding wellbeing 

provision.  

1.2 These findings led to the development of a Mental Health and Wellbeing Action Plan 

(Appendix 1) which was also presented at Employment Committee on 10 March 2021. 

The Action Plan outlined the various wellbeing plans which were to take place during the 

period March – June 2021.  

1.3 The purpose of this report is to update the Employment Committee on the actions included 

in the Wellbeing Action Plan.  

2 Mental Health and Wellbeing Action Plan Update 

2.1 Since March 2021, the HR Team have implemented the actions outlined in the Mental 

Health and Wellbeing Action Plan. During this time, feedback was also received from staff 

relating to some of the wellbeing initiatives which have taken place. The Mental Health 

and Wellbeing Action Plan has also been updated to include future mental health and 

wellbeing support plans. Updates on the individual actions, as outlined in the action plan, 

are as follows: 

2.2 Virtual sessions on mindfulness, mental health and resilience 

Results from the January 2021 ‘pulse’ survey showed that 42% of staff said that they 

would like sessions on mindfulness, and 39% of staff said that they would like sessions on 

mental health. 

The HR Team worked with organisation Get Sorted People to provide GP-led workshops 

on a range of mental health-related topics, including mindfulness, mental health 

awareness, and personal resilience. These sessions were limited to 15 members of staff 

per session and were reasonably well-attended. 

Virtual sessions on mental health-related topics were also provided by the Council’s EAP 

provider, Health Assured. These sessions focused on mental health, mindfulness and 

resilience. The sessions were limited to 20 members of staff per session and were well-

attended. 

Virtual sessions on mindfulness, mental health and resilience also ran for managers. 

These sessions included additional information on how managers can support the mental 

health and wellbeing of their teams and how to signpost members of staff to available 

further support. 

Information on all sessions was communicated to staff in advance via email and shared 

with the Council’s Unison rep. Feedback was received from some of the staff who 

attended the sessions (Appendix 2).  

2.3 Virtual workshops promoting the Council’s Employee Assistance Programme (EAP) 

Results from the January ‘pulse’ survey showed that 18% of staff said that they did not 

know where to go to get support for any mental wellbeing issues. 

18



 

 
 

The HR Team worked with the Council’s EAP provider, Health Assured, to provide 

sessions for staff on the EAP. These sessions took place virtually at the beginning of 

March and were run by Health Assured’s Corporate Relations Manager. The sessions 

provided staff with a greater understanding of the EAP and how they could make use of it.   

A separate EAP Awareness session ran for managers with the aim to provide them with a 

greater understanding of the EAP and how they could make use of it, as well as how they 

could signpost their team members to the Programme. 

The EAP Awareness sessions were limited to 20 members of staff per session and were 

well-attended.  

Feedback from these sessions was received from some of the staff and managers who 

attended (Appendix 2).  

The HR Team have since explored running these sessions for Members, and a number of 

these are due to take place virtually in the early Autumn.  

2.4 Encouraging staff to create their own virtual social activities/groups 

Some staff have engaged with their own virtual social groups. 

The Menopause Café has also continued to run virtually to provide support for staff’s 

physical and mental wellbeing. 

2.5 GP-led virtual workshops on diet, weight loss management and smoking 

Results from the January ‘pulse’ survey showed that 46% of staff said that their personal 

health and wellbeing goal this year was to improve their diet. 

The HR Team worked with organisation Get Sorted People to provide GP-led workshops 

on a range of health-related topics, including diet and weight lost management. The 

sessions were run by experienced GPs alongside a HR professional. The workshops took 

place virtually throughout April and May and focused on the following topics: menopause, 

women’s health, men’s health, managing weight, quitting smoking. 

These sessions were limited to 15 members of staff per session and were well-attended 

with ‘Let’s Talk about Managing my Weight’ reaching full sign-up capacity. 

Feedback from these workshops was received from some of the staff who attended 

(Appendix 2). 

2.6 Working with senior team around supporting employees to maintain a healthy 

work/life balance 

The issue of work life balance has been raised with the senior team and they are aware of 

this issue as well as the flexible working options which are available to staff. Senior staff 

are raising these issues with their teams. 

2.7 Assessing possible options to address the additional financial costs for employees 

working from home 

This will be part of the options analysis which will be considered as the Council progresses 

the options appraisal for its operating model in the future. A potential operating model 

could be a blend of home and office environment working. The Council is currently 

incurring costs on its existing offices and will need to offset a reduction in these operating 

costs if it considers a financial arrangement for staff operating remotely. 

2.8 Other plans to support the mental health and wellbeing of SKDC staff and Members 

19



 

 
 

The Wellbeing Team has continued to support the mental health and wellbeing of SKDC 

staff and Members by providing regular wellbeing articles via email.  

As part of ‘Healthy Eating Week’, virtual cookery sessions ran for staff throughout July. 

The HR team and two work experience students at the Council worked with a professional 

chef from local cookery company, Homemade House, to provide these. Two of the four 

sessions were pre-recorded to ensure that they would be fully accessible to staff. These 

sessions were communicated to all staff in advance via email and were well-attended. 

The use of additional pulse surveys will be considered going forward to continue so that 

the wellbeing of staff is monitored, and any necessary actions can be implemented. 

3 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

3.1 Continue to implement the future mental health and wellbeing plans, as outlined in the 

Mental Health and Wellbeing Action Plan.  

4 Financial Implications  

4.1 There is a specific budget of £25,000 in the 2021/22 budget framework to support 

initiatives to support wellbeing activities. This can be used as required to support activities 

set out in the report. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Assistant Director of Finance 

and s151 Officer 

5 Legal and Governance Implications  

5.1 From an employment law perspective, the work on mental health and wellbeing are to be 

welcomed, as the Council as an employer has legal obligations to look after the health and 

welfare of its employees. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Deputy Monitoring Officer 

6 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

6.1 The actions referred to in this report have positive equality implications. The wellbeing 

sessions covered a range of topics which catered for the diversity of the workforce. The 

sessions were held virtually and so were easily accessible. An Equality Impact 

Assessment is being undertaken to ensure that the action plan does not present barriers 

to participation or disadvantage any protected groups from participation. There are no 

safeguarding implications resulting from this report. 

7 Risk and Mitigation 

7.1 The key risk associated with the Health and Wellbeing Action Plan is an increase in staff 

sickness as a result of poor mental health and wellbeing. The actions detailed in the action 

plan aim to mitigate this risk through supporting the welfare of the Council’s employees. 

Community Safety Implications 

8  Community Safety Implications 

8.1 There are no community safety implications relating to this report.  

9 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

9.1 The recommendations in this report have no carbon impact.  

20



 

 
 

10 Other Implications (where significant) 

10.1 There are no other implications relating to this report. 

11 Background Papers 

11.1 N/A 

12 Appendices 

12.1 Appendix 1 – Mental Health and Wellbeing Action Plan 

12.2 Appendix 2 – Feedback from webinars 

 

 

 

 

21



This page is intentionally left blank



Finding from January Pulse 

Survey

Action (March 2021) Update (August 2021)

42% said that they would like sessions on mindfulness, 

and 39% said that they would like sessions on mental 

health.

A number of virtual sessions on mindfulness, 

mental health and resilience have been organised 

and will be running for staff from March through to 

May.  If these are well-attended, more sessions will 

look to be booked for staff after May.

The HR Team worked with organisation Get Sorted People to provide GP-led workshops 

on a range of mental health-related topics, including mindfulness, mental health 

awareness, and personal resilience. These sessions were limited to 15 members of staff 

per session and were reasonably well-attended.

Virtual sessions on mental health-related topics were also provided by the Council’s 

EAP provider, Health Assured. These sessions focused on mental health, mindfulness 

and resilience. These sessions were limited to 20 members of staff per session and were 

well-attended.

18% said that they did not know where to go for any 

mental wellbeing issues.

Health Assured will be running virtual workshops 

on EAP Awareness for staff and managers in 

March. Information on the Council’s Mental Health 

First Aiders and the EAP are also to be highlighted 

in the upcoming Wellbeing Special all-staff email.

The HR Team worked with the Council’s EAP provider, Health Assured, to provide 

sessions for staff on the EAP. These sessions took place virtually at the beginning of 

March and were run by Health Assured’s Corporate Relations Manager. The sessions 

provided staff with a greater understanding of the EAP and how they could make use of 

it.  

A separate EAP Awareness session ran for managers with the aim to provide them with 

a greater understanding of the EAP and how they could make use of it, as well as how 

they could signpost their team members to the Programme.

The HR Team have since explored running these sessions for Members, and a number 

of these are due to take place virtually in the early Autumn. 

33% said they would like virtual coffee breaks, and 36% 

said they would like ‘fun’ council wide activities.
Previous attempts to formally organise virtual 

social events have not been successful and 

encouraging these to form organically appears to 

be the best approach going forward. The upcoming 

Wellbeing Special all-staff email will encourage 

staff to create their own virtual social activities and 

provide existing examples.

Some staff have engaged with their own virtual social groups.

The Menopause Café has also continued to run virtually to provide support for staff’s 

physical and mental wellbeing.

As part of ‘Healthy Eating Week’, virtual cookery sessions ran for staff throughout July. 

The HR team and two work experience students at the Council worked with a 

professional chef from local cookery company, Homemade House, to provide these. 

Two of the four sessions were pre-recorded to ensure that they would be fully 

accessible to staff. These sessions were communicated to all staff in advance via email 

and were well-attended.

68% said that their personal health and wellbeing goal 

this year was to improve their fitness, and 19% said 

they would make use of a steps challenge.

Last May a virtual all-staff Steps Challenge was held 

which proved to be popular. The Wellbeing team is 

planning to run this again in the spring when the 

weather has improved.

This action was not undertaken due to the easing of lockdown restrictions in the late 

Spring.

23



Finding from January Pulse 

Survey

Action (March 2021) Update (August 2021)

46% said that their personal health and wellbeing goal 

this year was to improve their diet.

A GP-led virtual workshop on diet and weight loss 

management has been organised and will be running 

for staff in May.

The HR Team worked with organisation Get Sorted People to provide GP-led 

workshops on a range of health-related topics, including diet and weight lost 

management. The sessions were run by experienced GPs alongside a HR 

professional. The workshops took place virtually throughout April and May and 

focused on the following topics: menopause, women’s health, men’s health, 

managing weight, quitting smoking.

6 respondents said that their personal health and 

wellbeing goal this year was to quit smoking.

A GP-led virtual workshop on quitting smoking has 

been organised and will be running for staff in May.

The HR Team worked with organisation Get Sorted People to provide GP-led 

workshops on a range of health-related topics, including diet and weight lost 

management. The sessions were run by experienced GPs alongside a HR 

professional. The workshops took place virtually throughout April and May and 

focused on the following topics: menopause, women’s health, men’s health, 

managing weight, quitting smoking

8 comments raised the concern that senior 

management have not done enough to encourage a 

healthy work/life balance for staff.

The Head of Organisational Development is planning 

to do some further work with the senior team 

around supporting staff to ensure that they are 

maintaining a healthy/work life balance.

Update from Alan to follow.

8 comments raised the concern that there is a lack of 

support from line management for employee mental 

wellbeing.

Virtual workshops on mindfulness, mental health and 

resilience will be running specifically for managers in 

March. These sessions aim to both support the 

mental wellbeing of managers as well as to raise 

awareness of these issues so managers are best 

equipped to support their teams.

Virtual sessions specifically for managers on mental health-related topics were 

provided by the Council’s EAP provider, Health Assured. These sessions focused on 

mental health, mindfulness and resilience. These sessions were limited to 20 

members of staff per session and were well-attended.

A number of comments expressed the challenges of 

home schooling children alongside working from 

home.

This will be highlighted in the next all staff article 

from Wellbeing and possible options are being 

explored.

Schools re-opened in March 2021.

Two comments highlighted the issue of additional 

financial costs of working from home.
The Director of Finance is currently looking into 

possible options to address the issue of additional 

financial costs for staff working from home.

Update from Richard to follow.

9 comments raised concerns about experiencing 

pressure from heavy workloads. 
The Head of Organisational Development will 

communicate with all line managers around ensuring 

that they are providing their team members with 

regular one to ones as well as monitoring workloads.

Update from Alan to follow.

24



Comments from attendees:

• ‘I found the Mental Health Wellbeing webinar very useful. And very informative.’

• ‘I attended all the manager sessions and enjoyed them all. Clearly there was some overlap, so 
repeated messaging here and there. I was able to promote (and recommend) the service to my 
team – and hopefully more effectively having attended the sessions myself. However, I am 
concerned that the ‘remote’ nature of the service is a double edged sword – it could feel very 
distant if you were trying to discuss sensitive issues. It also seems difficult for managers to follow 
up on issues if they’re out of the loop. I suspect some anonymised recommendations from satisfied 
users of the service would encourage greater sign-up and engagement.’

• ‘I was pleasantly surprised by the EAP, in fact amazed at the areas that support is available. I 
certainly think it would be beneficial for staff to be made aware of the type of subject areas that 
can be supported – I imagine the majority of staff have little idea that it’s so extensive.’

• ‘Yes, they were quite useful. I was interested to hear that about their app. I did however, find it 
hard to sit and listen for a whole hour. I know that it is difficult via Teams but maybe a bit of 
interaction, just to break up the listening.’

Health Assured Sessions 10th – 25th March

25



Health shots 7th April  - 14th May

• 100% of completed feedback forms rated the virtual workshop as excellent

• 100% of completed feedback forms rated the level of the virtual workshop as ‘about right’

Comments from attendees:

• [The presenter was] very matter of fact and kept it basic so very easy to understand, it was brilliant 
having a doctor on it as it give a professional aspect and she was so good and approachable to 
discuss topics.

• Make it a regular item as people need to know about this kind of information it should be 
advertised in Team Meetings as it’s invaluable.

• It was all very good and enjoyable and very informative.

• The weight loss techniques and advice on reducing food was brill, the exercise information and 
alcohol info.

• -The general wellbeing gives confidence in yourself.—I was interested in the anxiety and depression 
for people I know and what to do if I recognise the symptoms

• Thank you.  It is good to have workshops like this

26



 

 

 

Employment 
Committee 
22 September 2021 

Report of: Councillor Annie Mason 

 Cabinet Member for Communities 

         
  

 

Onboarding Employees Update 

An update on the onboarding of employees at SKDC. 
 

 

 

Report Author 

Jane Jenkinson, Senior HR Officer 

 
 

 alan.robinson@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

High Performing Council Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alan Robinson, Deputy Chief Executive 6 September 2021 

Approved by: Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 9 September 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Annie Mason, Cabinet Member for 
Communities 

14 September 2021 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Notes the update on the onboarding process for employees at the Council. 

 

27

Agenda Item 7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1. The Background to the Report 

1.1 One of the actions from the Employment Committee Workplan is a review of how 

onboarding has changed since lockdown and new ways of working and the effectiveness 

on inductions.  

1.2 The onboarding process for new starters covers the period from day one to six months 

following the start of employment. 

Prior to the Covid-19 Pandemic 

1.3 Prior to the pandemic the onboarding process was mostly carried out face to face with line 

managers having responsibility for the arrival and welcome of new starters.  New starters 

would normally attend the office for a welcome meeting with their manager prior to their 

start date. 

1.4 A buddy system formed part of the onboarding process and in line with best practice, a 

buddy from another area of the Council was arranged for the new starter.  Buddies were 

allocated from a network of volunteers across the Council. This was an informal 

arrangement usually starting with the buddy and new starter meeting for coffee.   

1.5 There are some mandatory elements to the onboarding process, including Display Screen 

Equipment, General Data Protection Regulation, health and safety and equality and 

diversity training.  These topics were provided by a range of methods - familiarisation with 

policies and procedures; completion of online training modules; and face to face training. 

1.6 A member of the HR team met with new starters to show them the iTrent system and 

complete paperwork and right to work checks.  New starters are also signposted to the 

new starter pages on Monty, the Council’s intranet. 

1.7 Throughout the first six months of employment face to face reviews took place to ensure 

the key elements of the onboarding programme had been covered. 

During Covid-19 

1.8 The Covid-19 pandemic and the requirement for the majority of staff to work from home 

meant that the face-to-face elements of the onboarding process had to be provided in a 

different format. 

1.9 Homeworking made it more difficult for new starters to establish relationships with 

employees from other departments.  As a result, the buddy arrangement was changed 

whereby buddies are allocated by the line manager from within the same team as the new 

starter.  It was felt this would be easier as new starters would see colleagues within their 

teams on a regular basis and having a buddy within their own team would be more 

effective in helping them to settle in. 

1.10 Managers or buddies now show the iTrent system and Monty, the Council’s intranet, to 

new starters. 

1.11 All other HR processes are carried out electronically at the moment and a welcome email 

is sent together with the new starter paperwork. 

1.12 Due to Covid-19 the Government implemented temporary adjusted measures for right to 

work checks where new starters can submit scanned copies of their original documents.  

These adjusted measures have been extended until April 2022. 

28



 

 
 

1.13 New starters email scanned copies of their documents to HR and these are verified by the 

new starter’s manager checking the original documents on the first day of employment.  

1.14 Feedback on the onboarding process is sought from all new starters at the end of the first 

six months of their employment.  This is to assess the effectiveness of the onboarding 

process and has continued since the Covid-19 lockdown to include those employees who 

started during lockdown.    

1.15 The feedback indicates that homeworking has been challenging for new starters, but that 

managers and colleagues have been very welcoming and supportive.   

1.16 The HR team is currently working on refreshing the onboarding process.  This will include 

returning to the provision of a corporate induction event, involving members and the Chief 

Executive and Directors.   

1.17 The OD team are in the process of implementing a learning management system to work 

alongside the iTrent learning and development module.  This could have the potential to 

include, after initial implementation work has been carried out, modules for equality and 

diversity, health and safety and fire safety to be delivered as online modules as part of a 

new starter package. 

1.18 Based on the feedback received in the survey, HR are currently updating the new starter 

pages on the intranet to provide more comprehensive information. 

1.19 The refreshed onboarding process will need to take account of arrangements for when 

there is a return to the office.  It will need to be flexible to reflect possible new ways of 

working, including hybrid working. 

2.  Financial Implications  

2.1 There are no specific financial implications arising from this report. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Assistant Director of Finance 

and s151 Officer  

3.  Legal and Governance Implications  

3.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Head of Democratic Services and 

Deputy Monitoring Officer 

 

4.  Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

 
4.1 The Council employs a number of new starters each year from a range of backgrounds and 

ages and the onboarding process needs to ensure equality and take account of differing 

needs.  The onboarding process needs to provide the same quality of experience for the 

range of working arrangements across the Council, particularly to ensure that a virtual 

onboarding experience is as effective as face to face onboarding.   

 

 

 

 

 

29



 

 
 

5. Risk and Mitigation 
 

5.1 There are risks to the reputation of the Council if new starters have a poor onboarding 

experience.  This could result in them leaving within a short period of time and having a 

negative perception of the Council as an employer.   

 

5.2 It is important that the onboarding process is effective to ensure new starters to the Council 

understand the culture and the values and behaviours that are expected of employees.   

 

5.3 To help mitigate these risks feedback is sought from new starters on their experience at the 

end of their first six months of employment.  Consideration of this feedback will assist in 

keeping the onboarding process under review to ensure it meets the needs of new starters. 

 

 

30



 

 

 

Employment 
Committee 
22 September 2021 

Report of: Councillor Annie Mason 

 Cabinet Member for People & Safer Communities 

         
  

 

Name Blind Recruitment 

This report provides information on name blind recruitment and recommends that the Employment 
Committee consider the implementation of name blind recruitment.  
 
 

 

 

Report Author 

Jane Jenkinson, Senior HR Officer 

 
 

 j.jenkinson@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

High Performing Council Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alan Robinson, Deputy Chief Executive 16 August 2021 

Approved by: Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 24 August 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Annie Mason, Cabinet Member for People 
and Safer Communities 

9 September 2021 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Approves the use of Name Blind recruitment 

 

31

Agenda Item 8

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 Name blind recruitment was widely brought to the attention of employers in 2015.  Its aim 

is to ensure that people will be judged on merit and not on their background, race or 

gender and enable employers to build a more diverse, inclusive workforce that better 

reflects society and acts as an exemplar of good practice 

1.2 Name blind recruitment involves removing personal data which can identify background 

characteristics from candidate information that is available to recruiting managers when 

carrying out shortlisting. 

1.3 Currently, in accordance with best practice, equal opportunities data is collected as part of 

the recruitment process and is kept by HR and not provided to managers at any stage.  

This includes racial/ethnic origin, nationality, gender, sexual orientation, age, religion and 

belief and disability information.  However, it may be possible to identify some of these 

characteristics from someone’s age and educational background.  This could lead to 

unconscious bias during the shortlisting process. 

1.4 When the issue was raised by Committee a number of years ago, the HR IT system did 

not have the functionality to automate name blind recruitment.  To do this manually would 

have been time intensive and there were insufficient resources within the team to take on 

this additional task.  A commitment was given to implementing name blind recruitment 

once the IT functionality was available, however no formal decision was made by 

Members to this effect. 

1.5 A recruitment module of the HR information system, iTrent has recently been implemented 

and is now being used for all recruitment.  This module has the functionality to enable 

blind recruitment by removing personal data, such as name and educational background 

that is available to recruiting managers until after the shortlisting process has been 

completed. 

1.6 Name blind recruitment is considered to be best practice and has been used for a number 

of years by the Civil Service.   

1.7 Research with other local authorities has identified that several have either implemented 

or are planning to implement name blind shortlisting as part of their recruitment process. 

1.8 One of the benefits of introducing name blind recruitment is an effective intervention for 

increasing diversity in organisations and reducing unconscious bias in recruitment.   

1.9 Name-blind recruitment also provides the opportunity for tackling unconscious bias which 

according to the Chartered Institute of Personnel and Development, makes good business 

sense to ensure that organisations don't miss out on talent, and individuals get the 

opportunity they need to get into and on at work. 

1.10 Therefore, the Employment Committee is asked to consider the implementation of a policy 

on name blind recruitment at South Kesteven District Council. 

2 Available Options Considered 

2.1 To continue with the current practice of providing recruiting managers with personal details 

of applicants, including name and educational achievements. 

2.2 To implement a policy on name blind recruitment where personal details are not 

accessible to recruiting managers until the shortlisting process has been carried out. 

32



 

 
 

3 Preferred Option 

3.1 The preferred option is to implement name blind recruitment. 

4 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

4.1 Name blind recruitment is considered to be best practice and provides the opportunity to 

increase diversity across the Council and reduce unconscious bias by recruiting 

managers. 

5 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

5.1 If a decision is taken to implement name blind recruitment, the necessary changes will be 

made to the iTrent recruitment module to enable candidate information to be anonymised.  

The recruitment pages of the Council’s website would be updated to ensure that 

applicants are aware of its commitment to equality and diversity by introducing name blind 

recruitment. 

6 Financial Implications  

6.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance & ICT 

7 Legal and Governance Implications  

7.1 There are no legal implications.  The current recruitment process meets the required 

legislative requirements. Name blind recruitment is considered to be best practice and 

enhances the recruitment process as set out in the reasons for the recommendation, 

section 4 above.   

Legal Implications reviewed by: Mandy Braithwaite, Legal Executive  

8 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

8.1 The implementation of name blind recruitment will enhance the reputation of the Council 

as an Equal Opportunities Employer, and improve the processes in recruitment to remove 

unconscious bias. 

9 Risk and Mitigation 

9.1 Not applicable. 

10 Community Safety Implications  

10.1 There are no community safety implications relating to this report. 

11 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

11.1 The recommendations in this report have no carbon impact. 

33



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Employment Committee 
22 September 2021 

Report of: Councillor Linda Wootten, 
Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Governance 

   

         
  

 

Local Government Association – Remote Peer Support 
– Final Report 

This report sets out the findings of the Remote Peer Support, which was undertaken in July 2021, 
led by the Local Government Association (LGA) with input from leaders within the local 
government sector and also sets out the timetable for further engagement with the LGA peer 
support programme. 

 

Report Author 

Ken Lyon, Assistant Chief Executive 

Tel: 01476 406080 

Email: ken.lyon@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Regulatory All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Gary Smith, Director of Commercial and Operations 13/09/2021 

Approved by: Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 14/09/2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Linda Wootten, Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Governance 

 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. That the Employment Committee notes the report from the Local Government 
Association and future actions, including a Corporate Peer Challenge in November 
2021 

2. That the Employment Committee formally thanks the Local Government 
Association and members of the peer team for their support in undertaking the 
review and developing the attached report 

35

Agenda Item 9



 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

Local Government Association – Sector Led Improvement 

1.1 The Local Government Association (LGA) runs a sector led improvement programme, the 
flagship of which is the Corporate Peer Challenge (CPC).  The CPC involves a team of 
political and officer leaders within local government spending time on site, meeting with 
internal and external stakeholders, to highlight the key strengths and areas for 
improvement for a Council.  It is good practice for authorities to undertake a CPC 
approximately every five years and, following the appointment of a new Chief Executive, it 
was intended to undertake a CPC in 2020.  However due to the restrictions relating to the 
Covid-19 pandemic preventing on-site meetings the LGA suspended CPCs in 2020.  
Information about the CPC is attached in Appendix 1. 

1.2 To enable them to continue to provide peer support to Councils the LGA developed the 
Remote Peer Support (RPS) offer, which involves a short period of online meetings 
between peers and internal stakeholders (and a review of key documentation). 

Peer Support to SKDC 

1.3 Following discussions with the LGA representatives it became clear that there was an 
opportunity for SKDC to take advantage of both of these offers in 2021 and to design them 
to ‘dovetail’ within one another to maximise the value of the support, and SKDC to action 
some of the findings from the RPS in July, ahead of a CPC in November. 

1.4 Therefore, the Assistant Chief Executive worked alongside the LGA representative to 
develop a programme, which included: 

- Remote Peer Support (July 2021) – Focus on People focused activity 

- Action Planning Session (September 2021) – Key actions to take forward from initial 
findings 

- Full Corporate Peer Challenge (November 2021) – Focus on all the activity of the 
Council 

1.5 The scope of the RPS was developed to help SKDC in its thinking as it seeks to develop a 
programme of ‘people’ focused activity around culture, performance and change, by 
providing:    

- A temperature check of where the Council is in terms of workforce culture 
and engagement, as well as alignment between corporate priorities and resourcing; 
and 

- Reflections on the key areas to focus on going forwards to drive performance and 
improvement.   

1.6 For the RPS the LGA assembled a team of respected industry leaders, which included: 

- Stephen Baker (Chief Executive of East Suffolk District Council) – Lead Peer 

- Cllr Abi Brown (Leader of Stoke on Trent City Council) – Political Peer 

- Kirsten Burnett (Head of Policy and Organisational Development) – Subject Matter 
Expert 

The team were supported by two experienced LGA representatives Satvinder Rans (LGA 
Programme Manager) and Frances Marshall (LGA – Local Government Support). 

36



 

 
 

1.7 In advance of the review SKDC provided a range of documents to the peer team to 
provide them with background information, these included; the Corporate Plan 2020-23, 
Performance Monitoring process, KPIs and targets, staffing structures and examples of 
engagement activity.  In addition to this, as part of the process, a self assessment 
document was developed and provided to the peer team. 

1.8 The RPS took place virtually over two days in July (alongside a range of 1-1 calls in 
advance) and involved interviews with a range of Members and officers, including 
Corporate Management Team (CMT) and other middle and senior managers, frontline 
staff from all departments, Cabinet Members and Opposition Members.  Following the 
review sessions there was an initial feedback session to Cabinet Members, CMT and 
Opposition Group Leaders.  A draft report was then issued, which was then finalised and 
issued to SKDC at the start of September and was issued to All Members shortly after. 

Key Findings of the Report 

1.9 The report is attached in Appendix 2, which highlights a number of things for SKDCs 
consideration, some of the headlines are: 

- SKDC has a high degree of ambition, a Corporate Plan that sets out to achieve growth 
and will involve investment in the District; 

- The changes of leadership and in style of recent years has had a significant impact on 
staff but that there was now a clear sense of direction, with some of the key building 
blocks (i.e. Corporate Plan, Service Plans, Performance Appraisals) put in place to 
deliver the ambitions; 

- The new CMT (new and existing officers) are a strong team, in which Members have a 
great deal of confidence – the team are keen to work closely with Members, officers 
and partners to achieve the outcomes the District requires; 

- There is a very significant work programme for SKDC, which will require effective 
prioritisation and management to deliver, particularly arising from the reviews 
undertaken.  Focus should be given to prioritising activity and communicating realistic 
and achievable timeframes for completing actions; 

- The Council is doing the right things and putting the building blocks in place to bring to 
life #TeamSK as a vehicle for promoting collective identity and shared values, and a 
joined-up operating model to deliver the ambitions within the Corporate Plan.  
However, this will take time and ongoing effort to deliver; and 

- Focus should be given to building on the successes to date with respect to workforce 
engagement and a two-way communication plan should be developed to reinforce this. 

Next Steps 

1.10 The LGA have also agreed to facilitate an action planning session to follow up on some of 
the key highlights from the RPS, the session will be an informal session, involving Cabinet 
Members and CMT with a focus on: 

- Prioritisation of delivery activity; and 

- Building a culture of effective decision making. 

This session is taking place on 28 September 2021. 

1.11 It is intended that this session will dovetail with the CPC, taking place w/c 15 November 
2021.  The result of the CPC is a full report, which will be published on the Councils 

37



 

 
 

website, debated at Cabinet and will support the Council in making progress against the 
actions ahead of the CPC. 

2 Financial Implications  

2.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report as the LGA provide peer 
support free at the point of delivery. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Assistant Director for Finance 
(S151 Officer) 

3 Legal and Governance Implications  

4.1 There are no legal implications associated with this report. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Head of Democratic Services and 
Deputy Monitoring Officer 

4 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

4.1 As this report is for information only there are no equality and safeguarding implications 
associated with this report. 

5 Risk and Mitigation 

5.1 There are no significant risks associated with this report. 

6 Other Implications (where significant)  

6.1 N/A 

 

7 Background Papers 

7.1 N/A 

8 Appendices 

8.1 Appendix 1 – Local Government Association – Corporate Peer Challenge and Remote 
Peer Support 

8.2 Appendix 2 – South Kesteven District Council – LGA Bespoke Remote Peer Support 

 
 

38



39



40



   
 

 
Page 1 of 8 

 
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ   www.local.gov.uk   Telephone 020 7664 3000   Email info@local.gov.uk   Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

South Kesteven 

District Council 

LGA Bespoke Remote Peer 
Support 
 

Date here 

July 2021  

41

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk


   
 

 
Page 2 of 8 

 
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ   www.local.gov.uk   Telephone 020 7664 3000   Email info@local.gov.uk   Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 
 

Bespoke Remote Peer Support  
 
When the COVID-19 pandemic emerged and lockdown began in March 2020, the Local 
Government Association (LGA) suspended the physical delivery of all peer challenge work 
including the core offer of a corporate peer challenge.   
 
To continue to support councils during this unprecedented period, the LGA rapidly refocused their 
support and adopted a new remote approach.  This new approach does not replace the LGA 
Corporate Peer Challenge offer. 
 

Background 
 
Between 13 and 15 July 2021, South Kesteven District Council (SKDC) undertook a series of LGA 
Bespoke Remote Peer Support sessions. The purpose of the support was to help SKDC in its 
thinking as it seeks to develop a programme of ‘people’ focused activity around culture, 
performance and change, by providing:    

• a temperature check of where the Council is in terms of workforce culture and engagement, 
as well as alignment between corporate priorities and resourcing; and 

• reflections on the key areas to focus on going forwards to drive performance and 
improvement.   

 
 The Peer Team included the following participants: 

• Stephen Baker, Chief Executive, East Suffolk Council  

• Cllr Abi Brown, Leader of Stoke-on-Trent City Council  

• Kirsten Burnett, Head of Policy and Organisational Development, Hyndburn Borough 
Council 

• Satvinder Rana, Programme Manager, LGA 

• Frances Marshall, Adviser, LGA 

 
The first stage of the support was a desktop diagnostic, with the Peer Team reviewing a range of 
documents and information.  This was followed up with two half days working remotely with SKDC, 
during which the Peer Team:  

• Spoke to more than 94 people including a range of council staff and councillors.  

• Gathered information and views from more than 17 meetings conducted remotely.  

• Collectively spent more than 60 hours to determine their findings – the equivalent of one 
person spending more than 8.5 days in South Kesteven.       

  
This report provides a summary of the Peer Team’s findings.  It builds on the feedback 
presentation provided by the Peer Team on Tuesday 27 July.  In presenting feedback to the 
Council, the Peer Team has done so as fellow local government officers and members, not 
professional consultants, or inspectors.  By its nature, the Remote Peer Support is a snapshot in 
time, and the Peer Team appreciate some of the feedback will be about things the Council is 
already addressing and progressing.  
 
The second phase of the support will be an action planning workshop.  This will enable SKDC to 
share with the Peer Team their emerging plans for taking forward a programme of activity to drive 
culture and performance change, and for the Peer Team to offer reflection as critical friends as well 
as share learning and practical suggestions from their experience elsewhere in the sector.  

42

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk


   
 

 
Page 3 of 8 

 
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ   www.local.gov.uk   Telephone 020 7664 3000   Email info@local.gov.uk   Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 
 

 

Executive Summary  

 
South Kesteven District Council (SKDC) is ambitious for change and has accomplished a 
significant amount in a short space of time.  A phenomenal breadth of large-scale reviews, 
changes and service improvement projects have been undertaken over the past 16 months, as 
well as investment in workforce engagement and supporting staff welfare.  This has all been 
against the backdrop of responding and adapting to the COVID 19 pandemic.   
 
The positive impacts of these efforts can be seen in the organisational culture which – after a 
number of years of different leadership styles and changes - is moving in a positive direction.  
There is nevertheless a recognition that there is a significant way to go and that this will take time 
to achieve.  SKDC is self-aware about where it is on its performance and cultural change journey 
and is focused on driving this forward to achieve its ambitions for place and performance.   
 
The leadership, ambition and energy of the current Leader and Chief Executive in driving these 
positive changes cannot be underestimated.  The recently completed Corporate Management 
Team (CMT) has already had a positive impact and can now ‘share the load’ in promoting and role 
modelling SKDC’s organisational values, behaviours and priorities.  With a recently reshuffled 
Cabinet as well, now is an opportune moment to invest in developing a cohesive political and 
managerial leadership team.   
 
CMT has a strong understanding of the areas and scale of challenge, and many staff recognise the 
need for change and are passionate about their roles.  SKDC is doing the right things to establish 
a positive ‘one team’ organisational culture and drive performance improvement. Inconsistencies 
and variation in culture, behaviours and performance nevertheless remain, and are evident across 
different parts of the organisation. These can be seen through variation in staff: understanding of 
the Corporate Plan and their role in delivering it; sense of feeling valued, equipped, and supported; 
awareness of communications and engagement mechanisms; collaboration across teams and 
departments; and relationships with elected members.  Critical resource gaps in certain areas, 
blurred Member and officer roles and responsibilities, and some problematic Member behaviour 
has been impacting on SKDC’s ability to achieve its ambitions.  These are all aspects which SKDC 
is aware of and is either taking steps to address or has plans to do so.  Effective prioritisation and 
rationalisation will be key as SKDC moves forward because it will not be possible to do everything 
at once.   
 
The Council is doing the right things and putting the building blocks in place to bring to life 
#TeamSK as a vehicle for promoting collective identity and shared values, and a joined-up 
operating model to deliver the ambitions within the Corporate Plan.  The Council can do great 
things and has both the ability and flair to deliver against its ambitions - but meaningful change will 
take time to achieve and become embedded.   
 
Intensifying workforce engagement, underpinning its activities through a well-resourced 
communications plan, and fast-tracking some ‘quick wins’ will improve two-way communication 
and help reinforce corporate messages, values and behaviours.  Perseverance, resilience, and 
constant reinforcement will be required.  SKDC can have the confidence to draw a line under the 
past and keep faith in the path they are on.  Trust, engagement, and results will follow.  
  

Leadership 
 
The strong, energetic, and joined up leadership of the Leader and Chief Executive over the past 16 
months has brought stability and a clear direction to SKDC.  This is reflected in broad 
organisational support for their ambitious drive for positive change and cross-party recognition for 

43

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk


   
 

 
Page 4 of 8 

 
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ   www.local.gov.uk   Telephone 020 7664 3000   Email info@local.gov.uk   Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 
 

this.  The authentic and open approach of the Chief Executive has been welcomed by staff who 
have met her.    
 
The Leader and Chief Executive are supported by a cohesive Cabinet, with consideration towards 
other Members, and a recently completed CMT.  This newly formed leadership team provides a 
good platform from which to continue to drive forward the current momentum SKDC has achieved.  
Investing in team building between CMT and Cabinet, as well as external Member development 
opportunities (such as mentoring and training), would help foster a strong cohesive team and 
create a positive environment for collaborative Member – officer working. 
 
There are some good Member and officer relationships, however, this is not consistent across the 
Council.  Examples were raised of some problematic Member behaviours towards staff and 
blurring of lines between Member and officer roles and responsibilities (e.g. micro-management, 
reprioritising operations, inappropriate attitudes, and behaviour).  These are distracting from the 
Council moving forward.  Member - officer relationships could be strengthened by setting clear 
boundaries and expectations around roles, responsibilities and behaviours (e.g. through clear 
Member Role Descriptions, a robust Behavioural Framework, and some externally facilitated 
training).  Elected Members and senior officers role modelling new organisational behaviours, 
values, and ways of working will be important in re-building trust across the organisation. 
 
Although only recently formed, the positive impact of the new CMT, with a strong blend of new 
recruits and existing CMT members, has already been felt and there is excitement for the potential 
of this new leadership team.  This additional capacity will be vital in driving forward change 
initiatives by ‘sharing the load’.  There is a desire from staff for senior managers to be more visible 
throughout all levels of the organisation.  Intensifying efforts to ensure CMT members are highly 
visible will address this, as well as help reinforce #TeamSK identity and goals. Identifying senior 
management and Cabinet Member leads for corporate priorities, organisational values and 
behaviours is one approach which could engender high profile role modelling, engagement, and 
buy-in.  Through these actions the Council will ensure SKDC maintains its improvement 
momentum and achieve its ambitions. 
 

Organisational Culture 
 
The organisational culture has experienced different leadership styles and changes.  The legacy 
and cultural memory of organisational churn and leadership styles are still affecting how Members 
and officers operate and feel.  The organisational culture was described by some as lacking trust, 
transparency, and accountability, and in which fear, micro-management and silo working were 
common.  Inconsistencies in organisational culture, staff morale, effectiveness of communications, 
and cross-team working are evident across the Council.  These can vary by team and department. 
SKDC’s leadership has a strong understanding of the areas of challenge and is doing the right 
things to improve the organisational culture.  There is evidence that this is having an impact with 
parts of the organisation describing the culture as ‘on a journey’, ‘good’, ‘effective’ and staff 
reporting that they ‘feel supported’.  There is nevertheless a long way to go.  Visible, consistent 
action and commitment from officers and Members will help to re-build trust.  Messages will 
inevitably take time to land and embed so repetition and reinforcement will be needed.  It should 
not be forgotten that during this time the Council has been responding to, and affected by, the 
COVID 19 pandemic.  The traction and impact of the Chief Executive since joining can provide 
confidence in SKDC’s path, demonstrating what can be achieved.    
 
Whilst #TeamSK is referred to by those in leadership positions, it does not yet appear to be a 
collectively owned identity or way of working throughout the Council.  #TeamSK has huge potential 
as a powerful vehicle and brand through which to reset organisational behaviours, foster a ‘one 
team’ approach and secure organisational buy-in to SKDC’s change agenda.  To achieve this, 
investing in internal communication and strengthening two-way information flows will be paramount 

44

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk


   
 

 
Page 5 of 8 

 
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ   www.local.gov.uk   Telephone 020 7664 3000   Email info@local.gov.uk   Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 
 

for success.  Developing a strategic communications plan - underpinned by requisite resources 
and aligned to the leadership team - will provide a framework through which to coordinate activities 
to have greatest impact.   
 
Intensifying workforce engagement activities is also a crucial part of this.  Considerable efforts 
have been made in terms of workforce wellbeing.  Workforce engagement mechanisms however 
are not realising SKDC’s aspirations for effective top down, bottom up, and cross organisational 
communications and collaboration.  Finding the right ways to reach and engage with different staff 
groups will be important in shifting organisational culture.  Good news stories - such as being 
nominated for the Municipal Journal Workforce Transformation Award - can be an effective way to 
showcase the behaviours the Council wants to embed.  Keeping on reinforcing core messages 
until they get through, with people proactively demonstrating the corporate values and behaviours 
of #TeamSK will be critical.   
 
Developing and agreeing a strategy for future ways of working – such as plans around hybrid 
working, future accommodation and communications – will add to SKDC’s suite of tools to use and 
provide levers to reinforce cultural change and promote the new direction of the Council.  
Ensuring operational instructions follow policy will be key to reinforcing messages and behavioural 
change 

 
Strategic Planning and Performance  
 
The wealth of changes introduced over the past 16 months – such as Corporate Plan, service 
plans, staff appraisal system - are starting to have a bearing on staffs’ perspectives and working 
practices.  These changes have been largely welcomed in those parts of the organisation where 
they have permeated.  There is a good understanding of the Corporate Plan and the ‘golden 
thread’ in some teams, such as SMT and frontline staff in corporate functions.  This is not the case 
however throughout the organisation, with many individuals unaware of the Corporate Plan and 
how it relates to their role.  Further work is required to raise awareness – with staff and elected 
Members - of the corporate priorities, organisational values and behaviours, and individuals’ 
responsibilities in delivering them.  Showing a clear alignment of resources to corporate priorities 
and developing a greater understanding of these allocations among staff and front-line members 
will help to secure buy-in and delivery.   
 
SKDC’s verve for improvement is evident by the breadth of reviews, change initiatives instigated 
over a short and incredibly challenging period.  Being mindful of capacity and prioritising effectively 
will be important as SKDC looks to move forward.  Prioritising and tackling at pace those issues 
that will make the biggest difference will further drive progress, avoid overstretch and allow SKDC 
to deliver against the findings of existing reviews.  Collectively agreeing as a leadership team the 
Council’s 'burning platforms', and developing an action plan for these key priorities, with 
clear performance measures, timescales and senior level responsibilities will help drive forward 
improvements and monitor progress.  This will support SKDC’s aspirations to be an efficient and 
effective organisation which delivers quality services to its residents.   
 
The introduction of the new performance reporting process and cycle, as well as resources 
committed to it, have been a positive development.  It provides solid foundations which should help 
SKDC to focus on priority areas where urgent change is most needed.  Having robust systems in 
place to capture and analyse the raw data will be important.  The performance 
management framework is at a ‘pivotal point’ in its evolution and will require an iterative process to 
build, refine and embed to fully realise its potential.   SKDC’s senior leadership team actively 
championing the importance of performance reporting will be instrumental to ensure its success 
and organisational wide adoption.   

45

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk


   
 

 
Page 6 of 8 

 
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ   www.local.gov.uk   Telephone 020 7664 3000   Email info@local.gov.uk   Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 
 

People Management and Capacity  
 
SKDC aspires to be a learning organisation.  There are examples of staff being developed, 
supported with training opportunities, and achieving career progression.  The reintroduction of the 
appraisal process has been widely welcomed.  There is also an ambition from Cabinet for ‘end to 
end’ improvements to Member induction and development to ensure this learning and 
development ethos is also Member focused.  SKDC’s efforts to recognise and harness talent could 
be bolstered by developing a corporate learning and development plan for staff and Members, 
promoting cross-organisational learning, and making use of external learning opportunities.  This 
will further reinforce the Council’s new direction.  
 
The SKDC staff which the Peer Team spoke to were loyal, passionate, and committed to their 
jobs.  They spoke highly of their immediate teams, and a strong team ethic was clear.  Whilst some 
staff reported feeling valued, supported, and equipped in their roles, this was not the case across 
all teams and departments.  Frequent staff turnover and resourcing gaps are adversely impacting 
on staff satisfaction, with some frontline staff reporting being frustrated, exhausted and not feeling 
valued.  There was also a perception of inconsistent approaches to performance management, 
high levels of absence, and ‘staff voices’ not being listened to.  Supporting staff with the right 
equipment and environment to do a good job, and for them to feel valued, will engender both 
goodwill and drive performance.  Continuing to work robustly to deal with poor performance and 
any adverse sickness levels will help achieve this and improve consistency. Tailored approaches 
to performance management will be required to also address ‘blockers’ to change who, 
irrespective of positive intentions, can impede organisational performance.  Unblocking barriers to 
enable staff to feed up suggestions, including into service planning and decisions, so their voices 
are heard and inform decision making will also have a big impact.  Addressing critical resource 
gaps is also paramount for SKDC to have the capacity to deliver on its ambitions.  HR is an acute 
example of this where recruiting senior HR support is something the Council are in the process of 
addressing.   
 
The existence of silo working across SKDC and adverse impacts of this are widely recognised.  A 
lack of knowledge of who does what within the Council is a significant barrier to productivity, and to 
fostering a ‘one team’ approach.  There is a strong desire, among those the Peer Team spoke 
with, to address this through closer cross-council collaboration.  Supporting the building of 
professional peer relationships, promoting cross-organisational collaboration, and enabling shared 
learning opportunities will help break down these barriers.   Improving the intranet offer will be an 
important tool for this.  For example, including an up-to-date staff directory with contact details 
of who works in each team will go a long way to addressing information gaps.  Fostering 
succession planning and eliminating 'single points of failure’ by utilising systems to capture 
processes, knowledge and learning will help to mitigate the negative impacts of staff turnover. 
 
Plans are already in train to clarify and streamline the decision-making and report clearance 
processes. This will support more efficient decision-making, providing a mechanism for cross-
departmental collaboration and empowering staff.  Streamlining processes and addressing 
blockages such as these would be widely welcomed - empowering, and trusting heads of service, 
middle managers, and their teams to deliver.    

 
Change and Continuous Improvement  
 
The Council has already undertaken significant change and service improvement projects in a 
short, and incredibly challenging, time span.  A new direction for SKDC has been laid out and there 
is strong commitment through the CMT, Leader and Cabinet to drive positive change.  There is 
recognition among some staff that change is necessary.  This provides the opportunity to build on 

46

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk


   
 

 
Page 7 of 8 

 
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ   www.local.gov.uk   Telephone 020 7664 3000   Email info@local.gov.uk   Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 
 

momentum and gain traction.  The permeation of change messages however is patchy, with 
engrained ways of working remaining, corporate messages not filtering through, and bottom-up 
communication not embedded.  More consistent and comprehensive communications will be 
needed (see organisational change paragraph).   
 
The Council is doing the right things and getting the building blocks in place for a strong 'golden 
thread' (e.g. Corporate Plan, service plans, values, behaviours etc).  It will take time nevertheless 
to see meaningful change.  Prioritising the delivery of some quick successes could go a long way 
to win hearts and minds and drive performance improvement.  For example, getting an up-to-date 
organisational chart with contact details off the ground, or new uniforms and equipment for certain 
teams would have an immediate impact.   
 
The Council should keep faith in the path it is on by continuing to embed the processes, systems 
and new ways of working to deliver culture change and corporate ambitions.  Consistency, 
resilience, and reinforcement will be needed to embed the new organisational culture.   

 
 

Recommendations  
 
Leadership 
 

1. Intensify efforts to ensure the new CMT is visible in the organisation to connect with 
staff and reinforce #TeamSK identity and goals.  
Identifying ‘champion’ roles from within the leadership team around corporate priorities 
values and behavioural work could help achieve this. Organising ‘all staff days’ and regular 
team/departmental away-days and meetings will help to practically demonstrate and 
cascade the new ways of working in the organisation.  

 
2. Invest time in developing a strong, cohesive leadership team.  

Techniques to support this could include development sessions between CMT and Cabinet, 
and investment in support for leading Members via external development and mentoring 
opportunities. 
 

3. Strengthen Member-officer relationships to create a positive environment for 
collaborative Member – officer working.  
Clarifying of roles and responsibilities could be achieved through the development of clear 
Job Descriptions for Members and development of a robust Behavioural Framework that is 
built around the Council’s core values. This can be supported by a series of externally 
facilitated Member-officer workshops. 

 
Strategic Planning and Performance 
 

4. Be mindful of capacity to undertake further reviews and deal with existing 'burning 
platforms’ by prioritising those that will make the biggest difference. 
Agreeing an action plan for these key priorities, with clear performance measures, 
timescales and senior level responsibilities will help drive forward improvements and 
monitor progress.   

 
5. Develop and agree a strategy for future ways of working to bring together levers to 

reinforce cultural change.  
Developing and integrating plans around hybrid working, staff accommodation, 
communication and HR policies will ensure they all align with and support SKDC’s future 
organisational vision.        

 

47

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk


   
 

 
Page 8 of 8 

 
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ   www.local.gov.uk   Telephone 020 7664 3000   Email info@local.gov.uk   Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 
 

People Management and Capacity 
 

6. Double-down on workforce engagement to strengthen two-way information flows - 
keep doing it until messages get through and behaviours are proactively 
demonstrated.  
Finding the right ways to engage with different staff groups, identifying the points at which 
top down and bottom-up messages break down, and investing in internal communications 
and new technologies will strengthen two-way information flows.   

 
7. Address critical resource gaps, particularly around HR, and any 'single points of 

failure'.  
More collaborative working through multi-disciplinary teams and capturing learning will help 
to protect corporate memory and reliance on a small number of individuals.  These will 
ensure SKDC has the capacity to continue delivering on its ambitions.   

 
Change and continuous improvement  
 

8. Put in place a resourced communications plan with strong linkages to the corporate 
centre.  
This resource investment and strategic planning will enable SKDC to reinforce corporate 
messages, organisational values and behaviours, and facilitate two-way communication.  

 
9. Deliver some quick successes to help wins hearts and minds, such as: 

– Progress the review of report writing and approval process. 
– Improve intranet offer including up-to-date staff directory with contact details of who 

works in each team.  
– Make specific service improvements and address staff suggestions (e.g. uniforms, 

equipment etc.) 
 

10. Try to draw a line under the past and have confidence in the path the Council is on. 
Continue building on the achievements already made and the direction that has been taken 
- trust, engagement and results will follow.  

 
 

Final thoughts and next steps 
 
The LGA would like to thank SKDC for undertaking the LGA Bespoke Remote Peer Support 
sessions. 
 
The Peer Team look forward to continuing to support SKDC on their journey, the next element of 
which will by an action planning workshop in which SKDC can share their emerging plans 
for taking forward their ‘people’ priorities informed by this feedback report.  The Peer Team will 
offer external challenge and reflections on SKDC’s plans, as well as tangible examples and 
reflection on scenarios and tips from their own experiences.  
 
This will be followed by an onsite Corporate Peer Challenge in November 2021.    
 

Signposting  
 
Annex A signposts to resources and case studies that may be helpful in informing SKDC’s 
development of its programme of activities.  

 

48

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk


Annex A - Signposting  

The following resources and case studies may be helpful in informing SKDC’s development of its programme of activities.  

Theme 
 

Recommendation Signposting and Support 

Leadership Intensify efforts to ensure the new 
CMT is visible in the organisation 

Details in the report. 

Invest time in developing a 
cohesive leadership team   

LGA Facilitated Development: The LGA runs a development offer for councils’ senior political and 
officer leadership teams, aimed at helping to developing cohesive leadership teams and supporting 
strategic leadership.  The programme - delivered in situ or virtually - is designed in partnership with 
a council and focuses on the issues the council wishes to focus on. The programme can be for 
leaders and cabinets, or run jointly with management teams to explore the key issues 
together.  Depending upon the development need, the programme might cover: Visioning; Roles 
and relationships; Team building (using the MBTI, TMS or Belbin Team Role tool if appropriate); 
Leadership styles; Budgeting and financial monitoring; Performance management; and 
Communication.  Contact:  mark.edgell@local.gov.uk  
  
East Midlands Councils Top Team Development: East Midlands Councils designs and delivers 
team development support to local authorities tailored to their individual requirements.  Further 
details are on their website. 

 

Strengthen Member-Officer 
relationships  

Role descriptions and behavioural frameworks:  

• Example of Merton LBC’s Behavioural Framework 

• Example of Role Descriptions from Bath and North East Somerset, Torfaen and Wiltshire 

• This Political Skills Framework toolkit is based on research into what traits and skills define 
great local political leaders.  It aims to provides a foundation for the support and 
development authorities’ offer to elected members.    

• The 21st Century Councillor report, developed by Birmingham University alongside the 
sector, focuses on roles, skills and support for individual Councillors to assist them to play 
their crucial front-line role in making connections and building strong democratic places 
where people can thrive.  The report focuses on councillors’ roles - aligned with skills, 
knowledge, and behaviours. 

• LGA Model Councillor Code of Conduct and 7 Principles of Public Life  
 
Political mentoring: There is the opportunity for certain elected members in Leadership roles to 
receive mentoring via the LGA from an experienced, knowledgeable and skilled elected members 
from another council to be able to work on a programme of development that can be bespoke to 
them at and a time and manner in which works best for them.  Contact: mark.edgell@local.gov.uk  

49

mailto:mark.edgell@local.gov.uk
https://www.emcouncils.gov.uk/Our-in-house-support-offer-for-Officers/team-development/41986
https://www.merton.gov.uk/assets/Documents/Behaviours%20framework%202%200.pdf
https://www.bathnes.gov.uk/sites/default/files/councillor_role_descriptions.pdf
https://www.torfaen.gov.uk/en/Related-Documents/Democratic-Services/Becoming-a-Councillor/Framework-Member-Role-Descriptions-and-Person-Specifications.pdf
https://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/media/1850/Councillor-role-description/pdf/Councillor-role-description.pdf?m=637121138935630000
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/read-revised-version-poli-243.pdf
https://21stcenturypublicservant.files.wordpress.com/2016/07/21st-century-councillor.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/guidance-local-government-association-model-councillor-code-conduct
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life/the-7-principles-of-public-life--2
mailto:mark.edgell@local.gov.uk


 
LGA Leaning and Development Programmes for Councillors: The LGA runs a number of 
training and development programmes for Councillors in specific roles and on particular policy or 
topic areas.  Or can co-design bespoke session with councils.  
Contact: Grace.Collins@local.gov.uk and mark.edgell@local.gov.uk  
 
East Midlands Councils – Councillor Support: East Midlands Councils runs a broad range of 
development programmes and events for elected members throughout the year, as well as being 
creditors for Councillor Development Charters. Contact: Kirsty.Lowe@emcouncils.gov.uk.   
 

Strategic 
Planning and 
Performance 

 

Deal with your existing 'burning 
platforms’ by prioritising those 
that will make the biggest 
difference and tackling them first. 

Prioritisation: In case useful for reference, here are some examples different Councils’ 
prioritisation and performance management approaches, and public communication of these: 
Newham, East Riding, Buckinghamshire.  

Develop and agree a strategy for 
future ways of working 

Future working: Hyndburn Borough Council have given consideration to these issues so Kirsten 
would be happy to share reflections on their current thinking around this.   

 

People 
Management 
and Capacity 

Double down on workforce 
engagement efforts to strengthen 
two-way information flows.  

Culture change and workforce engagement case studies: There is a bank of case studies from 
councils outlining how they have executed successful change and workforce engagement 
initiatives.  The full bank of case studies can be found at the Case Studies Resource.  The below 
are some which may be of relevance to SKDC.   

• Cheshire West and Chester Council – Communicating difficult change messages 

• Wigan Council – engaging staff in a new vision   

• Powys County Council – Leading through engagement 

• West Sussex County Council – Communicating with ‘one voice’ 

• London Borough of Hackney - Positive culture change through inclusive leadership 

• Staffordshire County Council - MindKind Staffordshire – combining internal communications 
with a strong health and wellbeing offer  

• Brent Council – It's Yammertime 
 
Communicating joined up Corporate Plan priorities, staff values/behaviours and quarterly 
performance: Barnsley Council may be of interest as an example of an authority that has aligned 
their Corporate Plan priorities, staff values/behaviours and quarterly performance reporting in an 
engaging manner to demonstrate performance against the key priorities and outcomes. See 
website.  The have developed something called the Barnsley Offer, which is a training prospectus 
available to staff which might be of interest. Contact: 
businessimprovement&intelligence@barnsley.gov.uk  
 

50

https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/highlighting-political-leadership/leadership-essentials
mailto:Grace.Collins@local.gov.uk
mailto:mark.edgell@local.gov.uk
https://www.emcouncils.gov.uk/Councillor-Information-and-Support
mailto:Councillor%20Development%20Charters
mailto:Kirsty.Lowe@emcouncils.gov.uk
https://www.newham.gov.uk/council/performance
https://www.eastriding.gov.uk/council/plans-and-policies/council-business-plan/
https://www.buckinghamshire.gov.uk/your-council/corporate-plans-and-priorities/
https://www.local.gov.uk/case-studies?keys=internal+communications+toolkit&subject%5B2603%5D=2603&from=&to=
https://www.local.gov.uk/case-studies/cheshire-west-and-chester-council-communicating-difficult-change-messages
https://www.local.gov.uk/case-studies/wigan-council-engaging-staff-new-vision
https://www.local.gov.uk/case-studies/powys-county-council-leading-through-engagement
https://www.local.gov.uk/case-studies/west-sussex-county-council-communicating-one-voice
https://www.local.gov.uk/case-studies/london-borough-hackney-inclusive-leadership
https://www.local.gov.uk/case-studies/mindkind-staffordshire
https://www.local.gov.uk/case-studies/mindkind-staffordshire
https://www.local.gov.uk/case-studies/brent-council-its-yammertime
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/our-council/our-performance/how-we-measure-our-performance/
mailto:businessimprovement&intelligence@barnsley.gov.uk


Address critical resource gaps, 
particularly around HR, and any 
'single points of failure'.  
 

East Midlands Councils HR support:  EMC provides a range of support to around workforce 
development.  The following of which might be of particular interest to SKDC.  

• Professional networks on Learning and Development; and Performance Management. 

• HR Helpline - Advice, support and workforce information for HR Teams 

• PACE tool kit to support using the Employers' Organisation National Framework.   
 
Workforce improvement guide: Sharing HR ideas for the future is an LGA publication aimed to 
help senior HR professionals and their teams to develop local action plans for workforce 
improvement by providing facts and ideas.  
 

Change and 
continuous 

improvement 
 

Put in place a resourced 
communications plan.  
 

Communications resources and guides:  The LGA has a range of guides and resources to help 
support and advance communications activity. The full suite of materials and support on offer can 
be found on the website.  The below tools are perhaps of most relevance to SKDC.  Direct advice 
can also be sought via, Matt.Nicholls@local.gov.uk, LGA Head of Communications Improvement.  

• Developing your internal communications strategy 

• Tips for understanding all of your employees’ experiences 

• Internal communications during times of change 
 

Deliver some quick wins to help 
wins hearts and minds 

Details in the report.  

Try to draw a line with the past and 
have confidence in the path you 
are on.  

 

 

 

51

https://www.emcouncils.gov.uk/Practitioner-Networks
https://www.emcouncils.gov.uk/-Productivity-And-Capacity-Enhancement%E2%80%8B%E2%80%8B%E2%80%8B%E2%80%8B%E2%80%8B
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/workforce-focus
https://local.gov.uk/our-support/leadership-workforce-and-communications/comms-hub-communications-support
mailto:Matt.Nicholls@local.gov.uk
https://local.gov.uk/our-support/guidance-and-resources/comms-hub-communications-support/internal-communications-0
https://local.gov.uk/our-support/guidance-and-resources/comms-hub-communications-support/internal-communications/getting
../Internal%20communications%20during%20times%20of%20change


T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Employment Committee 
22 September 2021 

Report of: Councillor Linda Wootten 

  Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Governance 

           

 

Designation of Monitoring Officer 

This report provides the Employment Committee with the opportunity to consider a 
recommendation to Council in relation to the designation of the Council’s Monitoring Officer. 

 

Report Author 

Graham Watts, Head of Democratic Services and Deputy Monitoring Officer 

 
07717 508013 

 graham.watts@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

High Performing Council Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Graham Watts, Deputy Monitoring Officer 8 September 2021 

Approved by: Karen Bradford, Chief Executive  13 September 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Linda Wootten, Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Governance  

13 September 2021 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

 
1. That the Employment Committee recommends that Council designate Alan 

Robinson, Deputy Chief Executive, as South Kesteven District Council’s 
Monitoring Officer from 30 September 2021. 
 

 
 

53

Agenda Item 10

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 Section 5 (1) of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 requires the Council to 

designate an officer as the Council’s Monitoring Officer. The Monitoring Officer may not be 

the Council’s Chief Finance (Section 151) Officer nor the Head of Paid Service (Chief 

Executive). 

1.2 The Monitoring Officer has statutory duties and responsibilities relating to the Council’s 

constitution and its arrangements for effective governance. These duties include: 

- Maintenance of the Constitution 

- To ensure the lawfulness of decision making 

- Responsibility for matters relating to Councillor Conduct 

- The registration of Members’ interests 

1.3 The Council’s former Monitoring Officer, the Assistant Director of Law and Governance, 

left the employment of South Kesteven District Council on 31 August 2021.  

1.4 The terms of reference for the Employment Committee provides for the Employment 

Committee to make a recommendation to the Council on the selection of a Monitoring 

Officer. Full Council will consider the Committee’s recommendation and the designation to 

the role of Monitoring Officer on 30 September 2021. 

1.5 The above duties and responsibilities have been carried out by the Deputy Monitoring 

Officer in the interim, with this being the earliest opportunity for the Employment 

Committee, and subsequently Full Council, to recommend and designate one of the 

Council’s officers as Monitoring Officer. 

1.6 It is proposed that Alan Robinson, Deputy Chief Executive, be recommended by the 
Employment Committee for designation as the Council’s Monitoring Officer. 

Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

1.7 The Employment Committee is required to consider making a recommendation to Council 

on the designation of the Council’s Monitoring Officer. 

2 Available Options Considered 

2.1 Option 1 – That Alan Robinson, Deputy Chief Executive, be recommended for designation 

as the Council’s Monitoring Officer. 

Option 2 – That another officer of the Council be recommended for designation as the 

Council’s Monitoring Officer. 

Option 3 – That Legal Services Lincolnshire be commissioned to provide this service for 

South Kesteven District Council. 

3 Preferred Option 

3.1 Option 1. Alan Robinson currently holds the position of Deputy Chief Executive and is part 

of the Council’s Corporate Management Team. He was previously the Monitoring Officer 

at West Lindsey District Council and successfully carried out this role for eight years prior 

to commencing employment with South Kesteven District Council, therefore demonstrating 

he has the required knowledge and experience to undertake the role for South Kesteven 

District Council.  

54



 

 
 

 

 

4 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

4.1 To ensure that the Council is compliant with the requirements of the Local Government 

and Housing Act 1989 to designate an officer as the Council’s Monitoring Officer.  

5 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

5.1 The recommendation will be considered by the Council at its meeting on 30 September 

2021. 

6 Financial Implications  

6.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Section 151 Officer  

7 Legal and Governance Implications  

7.1 Legal and governance implications are set out in the body of the report. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Deputy Monitoring Officer 

8 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

8.1 There are no equality or safeguarding implications arising from this report. 

9 Risk and Mitigation 

9.1 The functions of the Monitoring Officer are currently discharged by a Deputy Monitoring 

Officer. The Council is required to appoint a Monitoring Officer to fulfil this function. 

10 Community Safety Implications  

10.1 Not applicable. 

11 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

Not applicable. 

 

 

55



This page is intentionally left blank



Employment Committee Work Plan 2021-22 
 

Subject Purpose 
Meeting 

Date 
Outcome sought 

HR Dashboard 
 

The Committee to be presented with the HR Dashboard, 
which includes:  

• Establishment Figures 

• Sickness and Absence 

• Starters and Leavers 

• Performance Management 

• Learning and Development  

• Equality and Diversity 

17 
November 

2021 

Dashboard to be presented at 
each Employment Committee for 
its consideration. 

Return to work at Council 
Offices 

To consider the implications of a return to work at 
Council Offices following the Covid-19 pandemic 

To consider options available to 
facilitate the return of working at 
Council Offices following the 
Covid-19 pandemic 

Pay Policy Statement 
 

Annual report to Employment Committee, to form part of 
the Budget setting process. 

19 January 
2022 

To consider and recommend to 
full Council for approval.  

Pay Review 
 

Findings of review to be presented to Committee March 
2022. 9 March 

2022 

Undertake a pay review of the 
organisation. 
 

Items to be assigned 

People Strategy 
 

The HR Manager to present the refresh of the strategy. 
 
Aligning our people with our corporate plan goals, utilising, managing performance, wellbeing, reward and 
recognition, developing, talent management. 
 

Employee Handbook 
 

Update to Employment Committee annually 
 
Annual review of the Employee Handbook, to ensure in line with current legislation and changes 
 

57

A
genda Item

 11



Employment Committee Work Plan 2021-22 
 

Subject Purpose 
Meeting 

Date 
Outcome sought 

Employee Rewards and 
Recognition 
 

Update to Employment Committee annually 
 
Annual report to Employment Committee to update on initiatives in place and any new initiatives 

Onboarding Procedure 
 

Update to Employment Committee annually 
 
Review of how onboarding has changed since lockdown and new ways of working and the effectiveness on 
inductions 

Workforce Equality Report 
 

Update to Employment Committee Annually 

Chief Executive Appraisal 
 

Annual Appraisal  
 
The Committee to conduct the Chief Executives Annual Appraisal 

 

58


	Agenda
	3a 10 June 2021 (Special meeting)
	3b 16 June 2021
	3c 4 August 2021 (Special meeting)
	5 Apprenticeships Update
	6 Mental Health and Wellbeing
	Appendix 1 - Mental Health and Wellbeing Action Plan
	Appendix 2 - Feedback from Webinars

	7 Onboarding Employees Update
	8 Name Blind Recruitment
	9 Local Government Association - Remote Peer Support - Final Report
	Appendix 1 - Corporate Peer Challenge Information
	Appendix 2 - SKDC Bespoke Remote Peer Support - Final
	Annex A - Signposting

	10 Designation of Monitoring Officer
	11 Work Programme 2021 - 2022

